IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

BERKELEY HILLSIDE PRESERVATION, ET AL. Plaintiffs and Appellants,

v.

CITY OF BERKELEY, ET AL. Defendants and Respondents.

MITCHELL D. KAPOR AND FREADA KAPOR-KLEIN Real Parties in Interest and Respondents.

After a Published Decision by The Court of Appeal First Appellate District, Division Four Civil No. A131254

After an Appeal From The Superior Court of Alameda County Case No. RG10517314 Honorable FRANK ROESCH

MAR 2 3 2012

PETITION FOR REVIEW

MEYERS, NAVE, RIBACK, SILVER &

WILSON

Amrit S. Kulkarni (SBN: 202786)

Julia L. Bond (SBN: 166587)

555 12th Street, Suite 1500

Oakland, California 94607

Telephone: (510) 808-2000

I. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

- 1. For a project that is categorically exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), does the significant effects exception to the exemption in CEQA Guideline section 15300.2(c)² require both a finding that there is a reasonable possibility of a significant environmental effect *and* a finding that the potentially significant effect is due to "unusual circumstances"?
- 2. What is the appropriate standard of review of whether the significant effects exception to a categorical exemption applies?

¹ All references to "CEQA" are to Public Resources Code § 21000 et seq. Unless otherwise indicated, all further statutory references are to the Public Resources Code.

² All references to "CEQA Guidelines" or "Guidelines" are to California Code of Regulation Title 14.

3. When determining whether the significant effect exception applies, must a public agency consider alleged effects of activities that are not included in the project as proposed and approved?

II. WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE GRANTED

California Rule of Court 8.500(b)(1) states that a ground for review is "[w]hen [it is] necessary to secure uniformity of decision or to settle an important question of law." The Court of Appeal's decision creates a need to settle three important questions of law relating to categorical exemptions, and the "significant effects" exception to the categorical exemptions, under CEQA.

The Legislature directed the Secretary of the California Natural Resources Agency to adopt a "list of classes of projects that have been determined not to have a significant effect on the environment and that shall be exempt" from CEQA. (§ 21084(a).) The Resources Agency has determined that 33 "categorically exempt" classes of projects do not have a significant effect on the environment, and therefore do not require further environmental review. (Guidelines §§ 15301 – 15333.) Activities so exempted include addition of up to ten classrooms to schools, construction of four new commercial buildings of up to 10,000 square feet in urban areas, and construction of single-family houses and accessory structures such as pools, garages, and fences.

The Resources Agency has also established certain *exceptions* to the categorical exemptions, including the "significant effects" exemption in Guidelines section 15300.2(c): "A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment due to unusual circumstances." The focus of the significant effects exception is *not* to revisit whether activities within the exempted classes of projects will have a "significant

effect on the environment." The Resources Agency has already answered that question in the negative. Rather, the focus of the significant effects exception is to provide for further review of projects when *unusual* circumstances would take a particular project out of the exempt category and physical impacts of activities that are *atypical* of the exempt category are potentially significant.

This case concerns questions of when the significant effects exception must be applied. In this case, the City of Berkeley approved the Kapors' plans to construct a single-family home. The City found the project exempt under the categorical exemptions for construction of small structures and urban in-fill projects. In so finding, the City rejected the project opponents' opinion that construction fill which was *not proposed* for the project would be subject to seismic shaking. The trial court upheld the City's decision, holding that that evidence of a potentially significant impact was insufficient to preclude use of a categorical exemption unless the alleged impact was due to "unusual circumstances." The Appellate Court reversed, finding that evidence of a potentially significant impact "is *itself* an unusual circumstance" which precludes reliance on a categorical exemption. (Opinion, p. 13.)

The first issue raised by this case is whether use of a categorical exemption is precluded *whenever* significant impacts are credibly alleged, regardless of whether those impacts are related to circumstances which are "unusual" for the exempted category. Until this case, all courts addressing this issue have conducted the two-part inquiry employed by the trial court. These cases all require both a finding that there is a reasonable possibility of a significant environmental effect *and* a finding that the alleged effect is *due to unusual circumstances* with regard to the exempt category of projects. The Court of Appeal's Opinion, that allegations of significant impacts are *per se* unusual circumstances that preclude use of a categorical

exemption, obviates the need for the second finding, and thereby contradicts a long line of established precedent.

The Court of Appeal's new rule would eviscerate the very concept of categorical exemptions. Under the Opinion, all types of projects would be subject to one, and only one, threshold inquiry – whether there is a credible allegation of a potentially significant impact – regardless of whether the project fits into an exempt category. The Opinion would therefore make an agency's consideration of categorical exemptions identical to its consideration of the non-categorical "commonsense" exemption in Guidelines section 15061(b)(3), for any project "[w]here it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility" of a significant impact. It thereby would render all Guidelines defining exempt categories surplusage, and give no meaning to the Resources Agency's finding that those classes of projects will not have a significant impact. In light of the Legislature's direction that the Resources Agency designate just such categories of projects, this cannot be the correct result under CEQA.

The second important issue is the appropriate standard of review for the significant effects exception. The Court of Appeal held that the "fair argument" standard applies, holding that the exception is required whenever there is any credible evidence of a reasonable possibility of a significant effect, regardless of other evidence that no significant effect would occur. (Opinion, p. 16.) There is a long-standing split in authority on this issue, with some courts applying the fair argument standard, and others applying the more deferential substantial evidence standard, under which an agency may rely on evidence showing that there would be no significant impact. This split was most recently acknowledged by the First Appellate District, Division 2, in *Hines v. Coastal Commission* (2010) 186 Cal.App.4th 830, 855-856, and has also been acknowledged in CEQA practice guides. This case presents the standard of review issue directly,

since the Court of Appeal applied the fair argument test to require the significant effects exception, despite substantial evidence showing that the Project would not cause a significant impact.

This issue also merits the Court's consideration, since uncertainty regarding the standard of review for the significant effects exception militates against the use of categorical exemptions, even for projects that plainly fit the categories the Resources Agency has determined will not have significant impacts. Rather than risk judicial reversal, agencies will avoid reliance on categorical exemptions, and instead require EIRs for even the smallest projects, if project opponents so much as assert the potential for significant impacts.

A rule that the fair argument standard applies would also sow confusion among agencies making exemption determinations under CEQA. It is well established that the substantial evidence standard applies to an agency's determination that a project is categorically exempt in the first instance. It is fundamentally inconsistent to apply the non-deferential fair argument standard to the secondary question of whether that exemption determination should be negated because of alleged potential for significant effects, *regardless* of evidence that no significant impact would occur.

Even more confusingly, a rule that the fair argument test applies to the significant effects exception would run counter to the ruling in *Muzzy Ranch Co. v. Solano County Airport Comm.* (2007) 41 Cal.4th 372. In that case, this Court upheld use of the "commonsense exemption" so long as substantial evidence supports a determination that no significant impact will occur. Thus, under the Appellate Court's ruling, if an agency has substantial evidence that no impact will occur, and opponents submit evidence to the contrary, reliance on a categorical exemption would likely be overruled under the significant effects exception, whereas (under *Muzzy*

Ranch) reliance on the commonsense exemption would likely be upheld – for the very same project.

Requiring project applicants and public agencies to sort through this myriad of standards of review undermines the whole concept of categorical exemptions for classes of projects that the Resources Agency has determined will not have a significant effect on the environment. The Court of Appeal's decision will have major adverse consequences and farreaching implications by forcing routine, minor development activities to undergo expensive and unnecessary environmental review without furthering the Legislature's intent in enacting CEQA.

The third issue for the Court's review is whether an agency, in deciding whether an EIR should be prepared for a project, must consider evidence that a potentially significant impact might result from an aspect of a project that is alleged, but is *neither proposed nor approved*. In *Lucas Valley Homeowners Assn. v. County of Marin* (1991) 233 Cal.App.3d 130, the court upheld a negative declaration, under the "fair argument" standard of review, despite opponents' claims that it failed to analyze significant impacts of future expansion of the project. The Court rejected those claims, because such expansion was not included in the project as proposed and approved, and therefore the alleged impacts were not impacts of the "project," defined in CEQA as "the activity being approved." (Guidelines § 15378.)

Here, by contrast, the Appellate Court held that opinion evidence of potentially significant seismic impacts of allegedly required "side-hill fill" – which was *not included in either the proposed or approved Project plans* – required the City to prepare an EIR. This holding would allow opponents to defeat categorical exemptions simply by asserting their own *misconception* of a project and asserting that the misconception, rather than

the actual project, may result in significant impacts. This cannot be the rule under CEQA.

The Opinion would cause a sea change, and would tremendously and needlessly burden the processing of minor projects under CEQA. By imposing the significant effects exception even where alleged impacts are not tied to unusual circumstances; where those impacts are unrelated to the Project as proposed and approved; and where evidence shows those impacts would not occur, the Opinion would decimate agencies' use of categorical exemptions as intended by the Legislature. The Opinion, if left to stand, would force agencies to require full-blown EIRs for single-family homes, desperately needed urban in-fill projects, and other minor projects which the Resources Agency, at the behest of the Legislature, has already determined should not require further CEQA review. Therefore, this case presents pressing issues crucial to the proper functioning of CEQA.

This case is the right vehicle for considering these issues.

Petitioners concede for purposes of this case that the Project fits within two categorical exemptions, and the dispute whether the significant effects exception applies is clearly presented. The standard of review issue, and the issue of whether evidence of significant impacts must relate to the project proposed and approved, are directly presented by this dispute over applicability of the exception.

Nor is this a case where depublication will make the issues go away. Rather, the Court of Appeal's reasoning on the significant effects exception has been echoed in other court of appeal decisions. Moreover, the long-standing split in the standard of review for the significant effects exception would remain unresolved, subjecting project applicants and public agencies to significant uncertainty in applying categorical exemptions. And the issue whether evidence of a potentially significant impact must relate to the

project as proposed and approved would also remain unresolved. This Court should grant review to consider these important issues.

III. STATEMENT OF FACTS AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The Project in this case is a request for permits to demolish existing structures and construct a two-story, 6,478 square foot, single-family home, with a 3,394 square foot garage, on a 29,714 square foot parcel at 2707 Rose Street in Berkeley's Single Family Residential District – Hillside Overlay (the "Project").³ (1 AR 3.)⁴ The proposed home covers 16 percent of the property, leaving 84 percent in open space. (1 AR 127.)

On January 28, 2010, the Zoning Adjustment Board ("ZAB") held a public hearing and approved the Project. (1 AR 3, 144-146; 2 AR 516.) The City found that the Project was categorically exempt under Guidelines sections 15303(a) ("New Construction") and 15332 ("In-Fill Development Projects"). (1 AR 5, 30, 34, 40.) The City also found that the Project did not trigger any of the exceptions to the exemptions in Guidelines section 15300.2, and that the Project was exempt from further review under CEQA. (1 AR 5, 34, 40.) Petitioners appealed the ZAB decision to the City Council. (1 AR 3, 193-206.) On April 27, 2010, the City Council affirmed the ZAB's decision and dismissed the appeal. (1 AR 3.)

Appellants filed this action in May 2010. (Appellants' Appendix ("AA"):1.) The Superior Court, the Honorable Frank Roesch presiding,

³ Petitioners opposed the demolition of the existing structures, arguing that they were historical resources. The Court of Appeal denied Petitioners' petition for writ of supersedeas, and the Kapors demolished the existing structures. Thus, the only remaining issues relate to the construction of the proposed Project.

⁴ Cites to "AR" are to the Administrative Record.

held a hearing on the merits on December 2, 2010, and, in a detailed, 19-page decision, denied the Petition on December 30, 2010. (AA:140-159.) The trial court held that there was substantial evidence of a fair argument that the Project would cause significant environmental impacts. However, the trial court held, the Project did not trigger the significant effects exception in Guidelines section 15300.2(c), because the possible significant impacts were not due to "unusual circumstances."

The Court of Appeal issued its decision, certified for publication, on February 15, 2012. The Court of Appeal disagreed with the trial court's use of the two-step inquiry and held:

Where there is substantial evidence that proposed activity may have an effect on the environment, an agency is precluded from applying a categorical exemption. (Wildlife Alive, supra, 18 Cal.3d at pp. 205-206.) The trial court concluded that the relevant exception did not apply because it found no "unusual circumstances" present; however, the fact that proposed activity may have an effect on the environment is itself an unusual circumstance, because such action would not fall "within a class of activities that does not normally threaten the environment," and thus should be subject to further environmental review. ([Azusa Land Reclamation Co. v. Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster (1997) 52 Cal.App.4th 1165], at p. 1206.) (Opinion, p. 13, italics by court.)

In support of this conclusion, the Court of Appeal cited to this Court's decision in *Wildlife Alive v. Chickering* (1976) 18 Cal.3d 190 ("*Wildlife Alive*"). (Opinion, 11.) The Court of Appeal acknowledged that courts have interpreted the significant effects exception as involving two separate inquiries, the first being whether the Project presents unusual circumstances. (Opinion, p. 12.) The Court of Appeal also acknowledged that the trial court's approach was consistent with the two-step approach applied in those cases. (*Id.* at p. 13.) However, the Court of Appeal tried to distinguish those cases and argue that they "did not actually employ such a

two-step procedure" but instead "streamlined its approach by 'proceeding directly to the question of whether, applying the fair argument standard, there is a reasonable possibility of a significant effect on the environment due to any purported unusual circumstances." (*Ibid*, citation omitted.)

The Court further acknowledged "that it may be helpful to analyze the applicability of the unusual circumstances exception as part of a two-step inquiry . . ." (*Id.* at p. 15.) However, the Court concluded, "once it is determined that a proposed activity may have a significant effect on the environment, a reviewing agency is precluded from applying a categorical exemption to the activity." (*Ibid.*)

The Court held that the fair argument standard applied to the agency's determination under Guidelines section 15300.2(c). (Opinion, p. 16.) The Court then purported to apply the two-step inquiry for the exception to the facts of this case. The Court held that the proposed single-family residence was unusual, based on its size. (Opinion, p. 17.) In making this determination, the Court held that whether a circumstance is unusual is judged relative to the typically exempt project, as opposed to the typical circumstances in a particular neighborhood. (*Id.* at 17-18.)

Finally, the Court found that there was substantial evidence of a fair argument that the Project would result in significant environmental geotechnical impacts to construction fill for the Project. (Opinion, p. 18.) However, the Court did not determine that any significant effects would result from the "unusual circumstance" of the Project's size. Rather, the Court accepted the opponents' assertion that the Project would require construction fill that was not proposed by the applicant and was not found necessary by the City. (*Ibid.*) It was the alleged potentially significant impacts of "seismic lurching" to this allegedly required construction fill which the Court found to require preparation of an EIR. (*Ibid.*)

Respondents sought a rehearing in the Court of Appeal, which was denied. The Opinion was modified (without any change in judgment) on March 7, 2012.

IV. LEGAL DISCUSSION

- A. The Court Should Determine Whether the Significant Effects Exception Requires a Finding That Effects Are Due To Unusual Circumstances
 - 1. A Long Line of Cases Holds That "Unusual Circumstances" Is a Separate Inquiry Under the Exception Based Upon Its Plain Language.

The Court of Appeal's Opinion contradicts a long line of cases holding that whether allegedly significant effects would result from "unusual circumstances" is a separate and necessary inquiry under the exception. These cases rely on the plain language of Guideline section 15300.2(c), which provides:

A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment <u>due to unusual circumstances</u>. (Emphasis added.)

In Banker's Hill, Hillcrest, Park West Community Preservation Group v. City of San Diego (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 249, 278, the court explained that:

The application of Guidelines section 15300.2(c) involves two distinct inquiries. First, we inquire whether the Project presents unusual circumstances. Second, we inquire whether there is a reasonable possibility of a significant effect on the environment *due to* the unusual circumstances. (Italics original.)

The unusual circumstances test set forth in the Guidelines is satisfied "where the circumstances of a particular project (i) differ from the general circumstances of the projects covered by a particular categorical exemption, and (ii) those circumstances create an environmental risk that does not exist

for the general class of exempt projects." (*Ibid*, emphasis added; see also Azusa Land Reclamation Co. v. Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster (1997) 52 Cal.App.4th 1165, 1207; Wollmer v. City of Berkeley (2011) 193 Cal.App.4th 1329, 1350; Santa Monica Chamber of Commerce v. City of Santa Monica (2002) 101 Cal.App.4th 786, 800 ["[a] negative answer to either question means the exception does not apply." (emphasis added)].)

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