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

A few clarifications are in order. As in the trial court and the Court
of Appeal, the City and the Kapors (collectively, the City) do not fairly
describe the Kapors’ proposed project. While it would be a single building
that includes living space and a 10-car garage totaling 9870 square feet
(referred to as 10,000 square feet), the City describes the project as if two
separate structures. (AR1:3; Petition for Review at 8.)

Also, the analysis by Dr. Lawrence Karp supporting the categorical
exemption exception is not based on a misconception of “what the project
was in the first instance.” (Petition for Review at 27.) The Slip Opinion
accurately recounts the various opinions and reports prepared by Dr. Karp,
along with the Kapors’ experts’ contrary opinions. (Slip Opinion at 4-7.)

The City contends in vain that Dr. Karp’s opinions should be
disregarded because Kapors’ experts contended that Dr. Karp misread the
architectural plans. (Respondents’ Opposition Brief at 36.) But all that is

demonstrated is a dispute among experts that requires resolution in an EIR.



Dr. Karp had an opportunity to review all of the letters critiquing his
opinions before the City Council appeal meeting on April 27, 2011, and so
testified. (AR4:1089, 2:530-531 [transcript].) He explained to the Council
that he had not misread the plans. Further, based on his independent

analysis he continued to disagree with the Kapors’ engineers’ opinions:

I conducted an independent feasibility study. I now conclude that
there is potential for very significant environmental impacts from
construction and seismic lurching in service. I reviewed the City
Planning’s index and the entire file, including all plans ... The
structure seemed inappropriate for the steep site so I did a reality
check of the architectural drawings. The recent reports from the
applicants’ experts say I do not know how to read architectural
drawings, but I have been a licensed architect for many years and I
do know. Their reports have not changed my opinion. I cut and
matched prints and conclude that the depicted elevations typically
misrepresent the relationships between the steep site and the floor
plans ... Project grading and tree removal, including removal of
significant protected oak trees, will therefore be much more
extensive than represented by the City, just as noted in my letter-
reports and shown graphically on the Grading Section drawing you
now have. This project has potential for very significant

environmental impacts that should be studied and mitigated.

(AR4:1089; 2:530-532 [transcript of Karp testimony before the Council.])



The City contends that “although [Dr.] Karp protested that he did not
misread the plans, the City disagreed and properly disregarded his
opinion.” (Respondents’ Opposition Brief at 36, italics added.) But the City
Council did not disregard Dr. Karp’s opinion. The Council never
questioned his credibility, as would indeed have been pointless to do so in
light of his stellar credentials. The City Council’s discussion at the appeal
meeting never even touched on geotechnical issues. (AR2: 541-591.)

Dr. Karp has unassailable professional credentials as an eminent
geotechnical engineer and architect who has taught at Stanford and Cal. His
assertion that he reviewed the criticisms of the Kapors’ engineers and
disagreed with their opinions that he misread the plans was never refuted.
Kapors® attorney Rena Rickles acknowledged Dr. Karp’s “excellent
credentials.” And unlike the Kapors® engineers, Dr. Karp has “been a
licensed architect for many years.” (AR2:531.) The Kapors’ architects that
drew the mansion plans never expressed an opinion regarding Dr. Karp’s
interpretation of their plans.

The Kapors’ geotechnical expert, Alan Kropp, provided a conflicting
opinion that although both he and Dr. Karp had reviewed the same
architectural plans and he did not question Dr. Karp’s credentials, he
“believe[d] there has been a misunderstanding of the plans” and “does not
believe there will be grading necessary downhill of the lower backyard.”
(AR2:538.) Such statements were couched as Mr. Kropp’s “beliefs” and he
underscored that he was offering opinions, not stating facts. (/bid.)

As a basis for Dr. Karp’s opinion, he visited the Rose Street site on
several occasions, reviewed all of the plans, reviewed the outdated 2009
geotechnical report prepared for the separate house and carport as well as

the later Planning Department submittals on the project as finally



conceived, and created his own grading section drawing to determine the
extent of earthwork and excavation necessary to support the 10,000 square
foot house on its hillside site. (AR2:448-449.)

Those professional tasks were well within Dr. Karp’s extensive
education and decades of experience in the Berkeley Hills. From those
efforts, Dr. Karp developed a fact-based professional opinion as to the
excavation and grading required for an adequate foundation and anchorage
for the proposed large building. His independent evaluation provided the
basis for his opinions regarding significant environmental impacts.
(AR2;448-449; 4:1085,1089.)

As was discussed at the trial court hearing on the writ, plans for the
massive Kapor house show it perched on a steep hillside “like a little hat.”

(RT:46.) Appellants summarized Dr. Karp’s opinion that the building

... can’t just sit there. They’ll have to do benches and fills and all
kinds of retaining wall to do that work ... he did his own evaluation
of this house on this site and indicated where he thought the

| ‘benched-fill locations would need to be. He said the slopes were
different than had been represented ... there would be significantly
more fill required. The ... trees [would need to be] removed to get

the equipment in to do that ... no one refuted this ...

(RT:46-47, italics added.)

Dr. Karp also explained that “although the site as now configured
appears stable, the Rose Steps and the concrete of the elevated part of La
Loma [overpass] are cracked from fault creep ...” (Ibid.) He recommended

“an alternative project ... to avoid grading with massive excavations and



fills as well as the shoring and retaining walls necessary” for the project,
concluding that in his professional opinion the 10,000 square-foot project
had potentially significant impacts. (AR2:448-449.)

Dr. Karp did not assume that every home in the Berkeley Hills
presents significant geotechnical hazards. He concluded that this particular
home at the size proposed on its sloped lot required excavation for side-hill

fills resulting in a “probability of seismic lurching.” (AR2:448-449.)

Why Review Should Be Denied

There is no need for this Court’s review to “secure uniformity of
decision or to settle an important question of law.” (Rule of Court 8.500
(b)(1).) The City’s “sky is falling” rhetoric is without substance. As
explained in the Summary of Answer, infra at 2-5, the applicability of the
“fair argument” standard of review to consider an exception to a claimed
categorical exemption is widely-accepted in the case law and there is no
justification for a different standard.

Ironically, what would have caused conflict in case law would have
been a different result in the Slip Opinion. No case has ever upheld a
categorical exemption when there is evidence of a project’s potentially
significant environmental impacts. (Appellants’ Opening Brief at 45-51
[catalogue of cases].)! Here, the trial court recognized that the fair argument
standard should be applied but nonetheless upheld the exemption because
of confusion about “unusual circumstances” as an independent step. (Slip
Opinion at 12-13.) The Slip Opinion’s scholarly discussion of the statutory,

regulatory, and Supreme Court case underpinnings of categorical

'Not “all courts” addressing the 15300.2 (c) exception “conducted
the two-part inquiry employed by the trial court.” (Petition at 3.)
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exemptions will prevent such a result in the future, explaining why the “2-
step” approach can be helpful but is not required. (/d. at 10-15.) If
potentially significant environmental impacts are present, categorical
exemption is insupportable. It is simple.

Appellants will not here try to improve on the Slip Opinion’s

excellent analysis, and note that cases applying the so-called two-step test
did not yet have the benefit of the legislative history judicially noticed by
the Court of Appeal. (Slip Opinion at 12, n.9.) Division Four’s earlier
ruling in Wollmer v. City of Berkeley (2011) 193 Cal. App.4™ 1329 was
consistent with an integrated approach to unusual circumstances/significant
impacts, as the Court considered unusual circumstances to be inextricably
tied to the potential for significant effect. In Wollmer, no unusual
circumstances triggered any potentially significant environmental impacts
and so a categorical exemption was upheld. (Id. at 1352.)

The City’s odd reliance on the separate “commonsense exemption”
reviewed by this Court in Muzzy Ranch v. Solano County Airport
Commission (2007) 41 Cal.4™ 372 (a case that this Court modified
following a request by the undersigned counsel and other non-parties
regarding its references to the substantial evidence standard inapplicable to
categorical exemptions) is improper and irrelevant.

First, the claimed relevance of the commonsense exemption and the
Muzzy Ranch case have only now surfaced in the Petition for Review. The
commonsense exemption was not even raised in the City’s recent Petition
for Rehearing. Rule of Court 8.500 (c)(1) provides as a policy matter that
review is limited to issues timely raised on appeal.

Second, the analogy is without merit. There is a material difference

between Guideline section 15061(b)(3)’s commonsense exemption, where

11



it “can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that an activity in
question may have a significant effect on the environment,” and its
converse: Guideline section 15300.2 (c¢)’s exceptions to categorical
exemptions for projects with a “reasonable possibility” of significant effect.
(Italics added.) Projects described by the 33 classes of categorical
exemptions are not equivalent to commonsense exemption projects that
have “no possibility” of impacts. They instead encompass minor projects
that are generally not expected to have significant impacts. Projects within
the 33 classes are not “seen with certainty” to have no impacts; in fact,
when competent evidence of potentially significant impacts surfaces, the
categorical exemption fails.

Finally, the City rationalizes that “unusual circumstances” must be
assessed as an independent criterion of section 15300.2 (c) because
otherwise “no project that satisfies the criteria under the exemption could
ever be found to be exempt.” (Respondents’ Opposition Brief at 20.) This is
illogical. To meet the exception, substantial evidence must support a fair
argument that a project may have a significant environmental impact. This
is the same low-threshold standard that applies to overturn negative
declarations and mitigated negative declarations in favor of environmental
impact reports. (Guideline § 15064 (f).)

While the City essentially presumes that it is always possible to meet
the fair argument standard, if that were true no negative declaration or

mitigated negative declaration could withstand challenge.” After 40 years

2 A “single neighbor who complained that he did not like the look of
a new house or that it would increase traffic” as posited by the City below
would not qualify as substantial evidence defeating categorical exemption
and would also be insufficient to defeat a negative declaration.

12



with CEQA, we know better. Negative declarations exponentially
outnumber EIRs. The simple premise to both categorical exemptions and
negative declarations is that they are disallowed by CEQA in the presence
of a qualified fair argument of potentially significant environmental effects.
To summarize, the “unusual circumstances” referenced in Guideline
section 15300.2 (c) inform the quality of evidence required to except a
project from an exemption category. But they do not rise to the level of a
separate-but-equal criterion. It cannot be overstated that CEQA’s statutory
authority does not allow categorical exemptions for any project that may
have a significant impact on the environment; that simple premise remains
the overarching rule and allows no separate unusual circumstances inquiry.
This Court ruled in Wildlife Alive, supra, 18 Cal.3d 190, that
* The Public Resources Code empowers the Secretary of the
Resources Agency to adopt regulations to categorically
exempt projects from CEQA only for projects that will not
have a significant environmental effect.
* No regulation may exceed the scope of the enabling statute.

* Use of a categorical exemption is improper for any project
that may have a significant impact, since otherwise the
subject regulations (the CEQA Guidelines for categorical
exemptions) would exceed the statutory authority of the
Public Resources Code.

(/d. at 205-206; see also Mountain Lion Foundation v. Fish and Game
Commission (1997) 16 Cal.4™ 105, 124.)

We now know that when adopted in 1980 the categorical exemption

exception Guideline cited only four elements as its underlying authority:

13



Public Resources Code section 21083
Public Resources Code section 21084
Public Resources Code section 21085
Wildlife Alive v. Chickering

el

(Request for Judicial Notice, Ex.4 at 18, Slip Opinion at 12, n.9; attached.)

First, Public Resources Code sections 21083 and [former] section
21085 provide general authority for the adoption of regulations (aka the
CEQA Guidelines) to implement CEQA.

Next, Public Resources section 21084 is specific to categorical
exemptions: it allows CEQA guidelines to be prepared and adopted to
“include a list of classes of projects which have been determined not to
have a significant effect on the environment and which shall be exempt.”

The last authority relied upon for adoption of section 15300.2 (c)
is the Wildlife Alive case, which disallows categorical exemption for any
project that may have a significant impact.

With all of this authority in hand, the Slip Opinion is the very
opposite of the “sea change” decried by the City and the Kapors in an
attempt to gain this Court’s review. (Petition at 7.) It will not “eviscerate
the very concept of categorical exemptions.” (/d. at 4.) It will not “vitiate
the whole concept of categorical exemption.” (/d. at 20.) And it will not
require EIRs in matters not previously required. There is no “long-standing
split in the standard of review” that remains unresolved. (/d. at 7.)

The City worries that an agency may not be able to rely on a
categorical exemption from CEQA “when faced with any reasonable
possibility of a significant impact — even an impact typical of an exempt
class of projects.” (Petition at 21.) Yet in creating classes of projects

eligible for categorical exemptions, the power of the Secretary of the

14



Resources Agency is restricted to projects that have no environmental
impacts. (Pub. Resources Code §21084 (a).) A typical project within the
class necessarily has no significant environmental impacts, and projects that
have such impacts are inherently unusual. The City appears to argue that
some of the 33 categorical exemption classes include projects that typically
may have significant environmental impacts. At best, such a stance would
concede that the class is overly broad and exceeds its statutory authority.

Appellants concede no such thing. Many thousands of California
homes are approved each year throughout the state without need for
environmental review nor even any permits except for ministerial building
permits. The exemption class for single-family homes is appropriate.
However, the proposed 10,000 square foot Kapor residence/garage is not a
typical run-of-the-mill single-family home appropriate for categorical
exemption. It requires three use permits. And while one could imagine a
comparably-sized home on a less-constrained site without adverse effects,
the Kapor project has potentially significant environmental impacts relating
to its size in the context of its steep site on a narrow roadway in the
seismically active Berkeley Hills. Such a project warrants environmental
analysis and mitigation in a prescribed and public CEQA process.

The Slip Opinion brilliantly follows Wildlife Alive and other
Supreme Court precedent interpreting the statutory authority for CEQA
categorical exemptions. It clarifies the application of the significant effects
exception based on substantial evidence that supports a fair argument of
significant environmental effects. No separate finding of “unusual

circumstances” is authorized by any statutory or regulatory authority.
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The Petition should be denied.
Counsel’s Certificate of Word Count per Word:mac*'': 3768

April 16,2012 Respectfully submitted,

Susan grandt—Hawley

Attorney for Appellants
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TITLE 14
(Hoginorlm, NMo. 19—5-10-80)

§15100.1 RESOURCES AGENCY

(p. 32218)

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